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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Nerofix Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, inciuding the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, its losses including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the '‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
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of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of nol detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a

(o))

©)

(d)

(e)

®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of accountas required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
the paragraph (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025;

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L

- ,Jl 2

,'.‘-j.r' .!-J'" BA

iil.

vi

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties'™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
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for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature
is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights, as
described in note 41 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
in respect of the accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

/4

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner . £
Membership Number: 110759 if & WO\

UDIN: 25110759BMKXNS6039 /£

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Nerofix Private Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Page 6 of 11

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date on the financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited

Re: Nerofix Private Limited ("the Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(iy (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin
pany prop g p g
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were not noticed in respect of such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 15 to the financia! statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institution
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the
quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such financial institution are in
agreement with the audited books of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

(iii) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(a), {b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

(v)

(vii) (a)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act related to the manufacture of adhesives and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to
the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(x) (a)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed
by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii)
of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 1211.71 lakhs in the current
financial year and has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, the
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, further state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Act in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirements to report on clause 3 (xx)
{a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

4 NN s
7]

" per Anil Jobanputra Cr

Partner
Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 25110759BMKXNS6039

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 - To the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of
Nerofix Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nerofix
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI")]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial 1eporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 25110759BMKXNS6039

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
Amount in Lakhs

N As at As at
- 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,831 14 1,896 97
Capital Work-in-p1ogress 3A 2,00
Right of Use Asset (ROU) 4 348.74 353.75
Intangible Assets 5 276 73 42512
Intangible Assets under development SA 598 -
2,464 59 2,675.84
Financial Assets:
Other Financial Assets 6 9.65 3.65
965 365
Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 7/ 131 463
Other Non-current Assets 8 3.76 354
Total Non-current Assets 2,479.31 2,687.66
Current Assets
Inventories 9 1,927.27 1,537 43
Financial Assets
‘Trade Receivables 10 2,223.19 2,226.70
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 134 57 43518
2,357.76 2,661.88
Other Current Assets 12 28257 148 56
Total Current Assefs 4,567.60 4,347.87
Total Assets 7,046.91 7035.53
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 2,000.00 2,000.00
Other Equity 14 (2,604.12) (1,073.33)
Total Equity (604.12) 926.67
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilitics
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings 15 3.000 00 1.500.00
3,000.00 1,500.00
Provisions 17 85.15 45.53
Total Non-current Liabilities 3,085.15 1,545.53
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
Bomrowings 18 - 468 75
Trade Payables 19
Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium 216 20 136 65
Enterpiises
Total Qutstanding dues of other than Micro, Small 3,801.15 2,506,12
and Medium Enterprises i
4,017.35 3,11152
Other Financial Liabilities 20 304 37 13975
Other Curient Liabilities 21 217.89 1,291.47
Short Term Provisions 22 26.27 20.59
Total Current Liabilities 4,565.88 4,563.33
Total Liabilities 7,651.03 6,108.86
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,046,91 7.035,53
Material Accounting Policies 2.1
[ nenes referred to above [onan an intepral pat ol these Financial Stntoineils
As per out allached 1eport of even date For and on behal (" Hopurd ol e um of Mer@ilik My m Lintad
\i\’)»’f’ /
For SR BC & CO LLP Prashant Pai { |..w.h(. usalypd
Chartered Accountants Director Threcton
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 [N O8115481 DIN DR2452510)
/KM\f S —
per Anil Jobanputra i/ & > " Hikmini Subramanian /““"‘“
Partmer " * ’ Company Secretary V4 {)R"Vﬂl 7'6\
Membership No. 110759 : MUMBA! | *I ACS 20207 /X7 N
Mumbai Mumbai LL. =z
April 30, 2025 April 30, 2025 MUMBA' —
-—.f
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Year Ended

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended

QIGtE 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Income
Revenue from Operations 23 12,523 50 13,280.50
Other Income 24 018 1.52
Total Income 12,523.68 13,282.02
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 25 9,591 09 10,165 11
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress 26 (494.67) (28.37)
Employee Benefits Expense 27 1,756.22 90817
Finance Costs 28 268 90 205 60
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 29 260.52 32212
Other Expenses 30 2,667.96 1,983.39
Total Expenses 14,050.02 13,556.02
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (1,526.34) (274.00)
Tax Expense
Current Tax +
Deferred Tax 16 - ] 157
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (157)
Total Tax Expense
Profit/(Loss) for the period (1,526.34) (274.00)
Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (4.45) 2127
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1,530.79) (252.73)
Earnings per Equity Share:
Basic and Diluted (7.63) (137)
Material Accounting Policies 2.1
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Financial Statements =
As per our attached report of even date For and on behall of Board ul’ l'Jin:y{:'ﬂ 5of Ncu@ Private Limited
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 202§

Year Ended
31 March, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended
31 March, 2024

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Finance Costs

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability
Provision for Doubttul debts

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Working Capital Adjustments

Adjustment for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Other Current Assets

Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables and Other liabilities

Direct Taxes Paid (net)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset
and Other Intangible Assets

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of long term borrowings
Repayment of long-term Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) ol Short term borrowings (Net)
Interest Paid

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents as the end of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year, the
components being:

Cash on Hand

Banks Balances

Net Increase / (Decrease) as disclosed above
Notes:
(i) Figures in brackets are outtlows/deductions.

(1,526 34)

260 52
268 90
(445)
5412

579 09
(947.25)

(389 84)
(50 61)
(140 24)

507 05

(73 64)
332

(1,017.57)

(49.27)
(49.27)
1,500.00

(468 75)

(265 02)
76623
(300 61)

435 18
134.57

021
134.36

134 57
134.57

(if) The above Cash Flow Statement is prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in the Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flows,

32212
205.60
2127
47 39

2.93
805.83
(14.19)

145.79

(83 72)

1,500.00
(625 00)
(1,500.00)
(206.18)

036
434 82

|}

(274 00)

596 38
322.38

940 36
215)
1,260.59

(83.72)

(831.18)

345 69
89 49
435.18

43518
435.18

As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors ol Merofix Private Il.nmlc-_l
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

A - Equity Share Capital

Amount in Lakhs

Number of Shares
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 2,00,00,000 2,000
Issued during the period -
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 2,00,00,000 2,000
Issued during the period -
Balance as at 31 March, 2025 2,00,00,000 2,000

B - Other Equity

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retained Earnings Total

Balance as at 01 April, 2024 (1,073.33) (1,073.33)
Prolit/(Loss) for the period (1,526.34) (1,526 34)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (4.45) (4.45)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2,604.12) (2,604.12)
Balance as at 31 March, 2025 (2,604.12) (2,604.12)

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retained Earnings Total

Balance as at 1 April, 2023 (820.60) (820 60)
Profit/{Loss) for the period (274.00) (274 00)
Other Comprehensive [ncome 21.27 2127
Total Comprchensive Income for the period (1,073.33) (1,073.33)
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 (1,073.33) (1,073.33)

I'le notes refermed o ubove form an antegral part of these Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

Note 1: Corporate Information

Nerofix Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act. The Company’s has been incorporated on 17 July, 2019. The registered office of the Company is located
at A 2702, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M.Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013. The Company is
principally engaged in the manufacturing of Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants.

Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited is holding company of Nerofix Private Limited and is based and listed in India. Financial
Statements of Kansai Nerolac Private Limited are available in public domain.

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the
Company on April 30, 2025.

Note 2: Basis of Preparation

a. Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the “‘Act’)
and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time.

Details of the Company’s material Accounting Policies are included in Note 2.1.

b. Functional and Presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
¢. Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial assets and liabilities
which are measured at fair value.

d. Use of estimates and judgements
Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses
for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and
conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

i) Business combinations and Intangible Assets

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the
identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair
value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Significant estimates are
required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These
valuations are conducted by independent valuation experts.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

ii)

iii)

Critical Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements.

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company’s defined benefit obligation.

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

Contingences and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against the
Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify
reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided
for in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
proceedings, we do not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our financial position or
profitability.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

As described in Note 2.1(iii)(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables

The Company makes Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. The identification of impairment allowance requires use of
judgments and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and impairment allowances in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for Inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a perjodic basis. This review involves comparison of the
carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain
whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving
items. Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been
made in the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques,
including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

Defined Benefit Plans

The costs and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long-term employee benefits are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination of appropriate discount rate, salary
escalation rate, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, defined benefit plans are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2.1: Material Accounting Policies

)

iii)

Classification of Assets and Liabilities
Schedule 111 to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-current.
(a) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle ;

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded ;
(iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(b) All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.

(c) A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(i) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

(d) All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.
Operating Cycle

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current
or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its
cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any.

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located is included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and

estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is logated



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

iv)

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in-progress. Item
of Capital Work-in-progress is carried at cost using the principles of valuation of item of property, plant and
equipment till it is ready for use, the manner in which intended by management.

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

(c) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a systematic basis over
its useful life, The Company provides depreciation on the straight-line method. The Company believes that
straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Company. Based on internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives of
the assets are appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if there
has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is included
in the carrying amount of another asset.

The estimated useful life for the current period is as follows:

Asset Class

Useful Life (in years) — as per
Companies Act, 2013

Useful Life_(in—years) —as
estimated by the Company |

Buildings 30-60 30-60
Plant and Equipments 10-20 ~10-20
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Office Equipments 5 5
Computers 3-6 3-6

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset
is ready for use (disposed off).

(d) Disposal

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is
derecognised.

Lease

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for jht ufir'u_j_'_;qq

leases and leases of low-value asset. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease pn_.\-,:_n'],if'ri'f-. and™ ¢
richt-of-uce asset renresenting the right to nse the underlving asset. Ol w1 mara



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

(a) Right of Use Asset (ROU)

The Company recognises Right of use asset at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right of use asset are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of Right of use asset
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use asset are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the asset, as follows:

Leasehold land 75 Years |

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The Right
of use asset are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies on Impairment of non-financial
asset.

(b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liability, if any and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments, if any have been classified as financing cash flows.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property,
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value asset
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value asset are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
’ % the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income
St "-." Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 1 ' L ;
|| I f{
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

v)

vi)

Other Intangible Assets
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets are
initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

(c) Amortisation

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight-line method. The Company believes that
straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Company. The amortisation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as
a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

The estimated usetul life for the current period is as follows:

Asset Class [ Useful Life (in years) — as estimated by the
| Company
o Technical Know-How 10
Non Compete Fee 5
Customer Relationship 5

Employee Benefits
(a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

(i) Provident and Family Pension Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post-employment benefits in respect of
provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the employees’ eligible salary (currently 12% of employees’ eligible
salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC) which are charged

4"\ to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

vii)

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making the contribution,
and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan. The Company’s contribution
is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting
the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling”). In order to calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income, The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days to one month salary payable
for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months depending upon category of
employee. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for gratuity
benefits payable in future based on an independent external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the
year using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as Other Comprehensive
Income.

(¢) Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are
entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment/availment. The Company makes
provision for compensated absences based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the
year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Since the company does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date the
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet of the entity.

Inventories

(a) Measurement of Inventory

; "'Q'R\\_/A 7
(7 X
| The Company measures its inventories at the Jower of cost and net realisable value, / /4 DA



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

viii)

(b) Cost of Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates
and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production and a systematic
allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting materials into finished
goods.

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the same cost
formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company.

(c¢) Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value is ascertained for each
item of inventories with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to net realisable value is consistent with the view that
assets should not be carried in the excess of amounts expected to be realised from their sale or use. Inventories
are usually written down to net realisable value item by item. Estimates of net realisable value of finished
goods is based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made, of the amount the
inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly
relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing
at the end of the period. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost. However, when a decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished products
exceeds net realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value.

Amount of any reversal of write-down of inventories shall be recognised as an expense as when the event
occurs.

(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment if
and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Company and
their cost can be measured reliably. Otherwise, such items are classified and recognised as Inventory.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes. For an investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefore, an investment
normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or less from the

date of acquisition. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement cash and cash equivalent includes banlaverdrafis
which are repayable on demand if any. ARy N
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

ix)

X)

xi)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash tlows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses
are not provided for.

Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer
which is usually on dispatch / delivery.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts.
rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts
with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals
for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based on underlying schemes
and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there is no
financing component in the contract.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 — Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or
group of financial assets or financial labilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period.

Taxation
Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in Equity or in
Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any.
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.eferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax i.‘j,-'[']ii{]f"‘ ' :
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

xii)

a. temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction:

b. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred
tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the
extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Financial Instruments
(a) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial labilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair Value
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment;
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income — equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business mode! for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows u&ﬁ{m;ﬁi_x.lqIxx_'.-Ill}a_\"lnu_-1||\.



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

| Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest, are recognised in Statement of
]. | Profit and Loss.
| Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to
| Statement of Profit and Loss.
Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified
| to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial Ii'.'tl\'_il_‘g: : |
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and/ foyéfien excRgfigk gains
[2l(mumsaill =]
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Xiii Borrowing Cost

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises other borrowing
costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the
Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds including exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

xiv) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders and, if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity holders.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders (the
numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator) during the
period.

sented

2 the

' \ The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all periodspre
| shall be adjusted for events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares, l|lxer_1\5'!_l\';1\"_ur el

£ number of ordinary shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources. [ %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

XV)

Diluted earnings per share

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders and, if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity holders.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares
calculated for calculating basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
Dilutive potential ordinary shares are deemed to have been converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of
the period or, if later, the date of the issue of the potential ordinary shares.

Impairment Loss

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

In accordance with Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does
not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based
on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset is
impaired. In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Company considers
External as well as Internal Source of Information. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount for the individual asset. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount in.accordance with

another Standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

xvi)

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset’s cash-generating unit).
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The Company recognises impairment
loss for a cash-generating unit if, and only if, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates impairment loss of cash-generating
units first to the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating units, if any, and then, to the
other assets of the cash-generating units pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-
generating unit. These reductions in carrying amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on individual
assets and recognised accordingly.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

As at
31 March, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at
31 March, 2024

Capital work in Progiess

2.00
2,00

Amount In Lakhs

Capital Work in Progress Ageing Schedule
As at31st March 2025

Projects in Progress
Projects temporarily Suspended

Total

As at 31st March 2024

Projects in Progress
Projects temporarily Suspended

Less than | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 Years
200 - - 2.00
2.00 - - 2.00
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

More than 3 Years

Total

during the financial yeur 2024-25 and 2023-24

There are no project whose completion is overdue ot has exceeded is cost compared to its original plan
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Note 6: Other Financial Assets
Unsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 9.65 3.65
9.65 3.65
Note 7: Non-current assets (Net)
Unsecured and Considered Good
Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 1.31 4.63
1.31 4,63
Note 8: Other non-current assets
Unsecured and Considered Good
Prepaid Expenses 3.76 3.54
3.76 3.54
Note 9;: Inventorics
Raw Materials 535.61 591.82
Packing Materials 127.81 177.17
Work-in-progress 27.717 53.45
Finished Goods (Including goods - in transit of Rs.27.05 Lakhs .
(PY: Rs.Nil) 1,233.76 713.41
Stores and Spares 2.32 1.58
1,927.27 1,537.43

Trade Receivable and Inventories alongwith other current assets are pledged as security for Term loan from Tata Capital Limited
(Refer Note 15).

Nil (Previous Year: 19.25 lakhs) amount of inventories were written off during the current year. Rs. 8.74 Lakhs amount ol reversal of’
write down was accounted during the current year,

Cost of inventory recognised as an expense during the year is included in Note 25 and 26.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMTTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Amount in Lalhs

{ote 1z Trogde Regeivables As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 Murch, 2024
Unsecwed, Considered Good 2,223 19 2,226.70
Receivables - credil impaired 154 83 100.71
2,378.02 2,327 41
Less: Allowance for doubtfil trade receivables (154.83) 1100.71)
222319 2,226.70

Tiade Receivable and Inventories alongwith other current assets are pledged as security for Term loan from Tata Capital Limited(Refer Note 18)
For terms and conditions relating to related party, Refer Note 33
Trade Receivable are non-interest bearing and ciedit terms are generally from 30 to 120 days

Asat 31/03/2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Teaitieulais Less than 6 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than 3 il
months 1 year years years years |
-(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 2,211.74 11.45 - - - 2.223.19

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - . - <
(iii) Undisputed Tiade Receivables — credil impaired . 1145 16 83 . - 28.28
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — ciedil impaired - = 7954 19.77 2724 126,55
Totat 2,211.74 22.90 96.37 19.77 27.24 2,378.02
As at 31/03/2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Total
Less than 6 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than 3
months 1 year vears vears years
(1) Undisputed Trade 1eceivables — considered good 2.162.59 64.11 - - - 2,226.70

(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit 1isk - - - - - -
(iil) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 17.62 2630 1 60 . 45.52

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - = |
(vi) Disputed Trade Reccivables — credit impaited - 631 11.60 22.77 14 51 55.19
Total 2,162.59 88.04 37.90 24.37 14.51 2.327.41
As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
MNote L1: Cash and cash eguivilents
Cash on hand 021 0306
Banks Balances 134.36 434 82
134.57 435.18

At 31 March 2025, the Company had available Rs.Nil (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil ) ot undrawn committed boriowing facilities.

Note 12: Other Current Assets

Unsecured and Considered Good

Balances with Indirect Tax Authotities 209 77 11377
Trade Advances 734 208
Piepaid Expenses 23,16 1745
Other Receivable 4230 14 66
282.57 :A
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

As at
31 March, 2025

As at
31 March, 2024

Naote 13: Share Capital

I Authorised Share Capital 2,000 2,000
Par Value per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Number of Equily Shares 2,00,00,000 2.00,00.000

2. Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid 2,000 2,000
Par Value per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Number of Equity Shares 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000

3 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

As at 31 March, 2025
Type Promoter No.of shares at | Change During | No.of shares at the end | % of Total % change
Name the beginning of the year of the year Shares during the year
the year
Equity share of INR 10 each fully [Kansai Nerolac 2,00,00,000 - 2,00,00,000 100% 0%
paid Paints Limited
Total 2,00,00,000 - 2,00,00,000 ]
As at 31 March, 2024
Type Promoter No.of shares at | Change During | No.of shares at theend | % of Total % change
Name the beginning of the year of the year Shares during the year
the year
Equity share of INR 10 each fully |Kansat Nerolac 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 100% 0%
paid Paints Limited
Total 2,00,00,000 - 2,00,00,000

4. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has issued one class of shares, ie equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect of voling, payment of dividend and
repayment of capital On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company.
remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held

5. Delails of Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares:

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Naine of the shareholder % holding Number of % holding Number of
Shares Shares
Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 100% 2.,00,00,000 100% 2.00.00.000
Total 100% 2,00,00,000 100% 2,00.00.000
Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited is 100 % holding company

6. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:

As at Ay at

Number of shares at beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Number of shares at the end of the year

31 March, 2025

2,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

31 March, 2024

2,00,00,000

2,00,00,000
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 14 : Other Equity

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retained Total
Earnings
Balance as at 01 April, 2024 (1,073.33) (1,073.33)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (1,526.34) (1,526.34)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (4.45) (4.45)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2,604.12) (2,604.12)
Balance as at 31, March 2025 (2,604.12) (2,604.12)
Particulars Retai.ned Total
Earnings
Balance as at 1 st April, 2023 (820.60) (820.60)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (274.00) (274.00)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability 21.27 21.27
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1,073.33) (1,073.33)
Balance as at 31, March 2024 (1,073.33) (1,073.33)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

Note 15: Borrowings As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Secured loan
Term loan 3,000.00 1,500.00
3,000.00 1,500.00

TFor the current maturities of long term borrowings Refer Note 18 “Other Financial Liabilities (Current)”.

During the year, additional Term Loan of Rs. 1500 Lakhs is taken from Tata Capital Limited and total term loan is Rs.3000 Lakhs
which carries interest @ 10.70 % per annum. Loan is payable after 2 year moratorium and in 36 months till 15th March, 2029 in 12
quartely installments along with interest payable monthly. Term Loan is secured by following primary security is Propery at
Rudapur & Dadra Nagar Haveli plant with second pari - passu charge on entire current assets, present and future of the
company.The purpose of loan is paying trade payables and capital expenditure.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 16: Deferyed Tas Linhi

A. The mnjor components of deferred (ax (liabilities) / assets arising on account ol timing differences are as follows:

Amount in Lnkhs

(Charge)/ (Charge) /
Particulars As al rcc;:;lei(::d in 31?\’::::11 e recocgl;lei(:leld in =
1 April, 2024 profit or loss 2025 1 April, 2023 profit or Toss 31 March, 2024
for the period for the period
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Difference between wrilten down value of fixed assets as per the books of (51 14) (80 18) (13132) (67 62) 16 48 (51 14)
accounts and the Income Tax Act,1961
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Gratuity 16 80 1126 2806 1190 490 16 80
Provision for Doubtfuel Debts 2801 1095 3896 14 83 1318 28.01
Disallowances under Section 40(a)(i) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 218 083 301 306 (0 88) 218
Unused tax losses, restricted to extent of deferred tax liabilities 415 57 14 6129 3783 (33 68) 415
MAT Credit Entitlement - 157 (157)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) - - - 1.57 (1.57)
Unrecognised deferred lax assets relate primarily to unabsorbed depreciation which can be set off against taxable profit in the future years from the year in which they originate
As at As at
31 Mareh, 2025 31 March, 2024
Deductible temporary difference, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset hns been recognised are attributable to the following:
Unabsorbed Depreciation (AY 20-21) 14223 14223
Unabsorbed Depreciation (AY 21-22) 43276 43276
Unabsorbed Depreciation (AY 22-23) 34271 3427
Unabsorbed Depreciation (AY 24-25) 17005
Asat As at

Nute 17 : Mrovisions

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 34)

31 March, 2025

8515
85.15

31 March, 2024

4553
45,53
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS Al 31ST MARCH, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Notes 18 Borrowings
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 15) 468.75
468.75

Term Loan is taken from HDFC Bank Limited which carries interest @ 1025 % per annum, Loan is payable after 1 year morotorium and in 48
months till 28th November, 2024 in 16 equal installments alongwith interest fiom thw date of loan = Loan is secured by following primary security
is Plant & Equipments at Rudapur & Dadra Nagar Haveli locations and Letter of Comfort from Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited for 100% of tatal
facilities sanctioned. The purpose of loan was puichase of assets fiom Polygel Industiies Private Limited

Nute 19; Trade Payables

Trade Payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 38) 216,20 136.65
Total Outstanding dues of cieditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 3,801.15 2,506 12
4,017.35 2,642.77

For terms and conditions 1elating to related party, Refer Note 33

As at 31/03/2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment

Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
(iMSME 216.20 - - - 21620
{ii)Others 2.305.92 1.495.23 - - 3.801.15
(i1} Disputed dues - MSME . . .
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 2,522.12 1,495.23 - - 4,017.35

As at 31/03/2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods froin
due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
()MSME 136.65 - - - 136.65
(i)Others 2.055.62 450.50 - . 2,506.12
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME . - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 2.192.27 450.50 - - 2,642,77
Note 20: Other Financial Liabilities
Frade Deposits 186 96 124 11
Creditors for Capital Goods 147 0.24
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1908 1520
Payable to Staff 96.86 020
304.37 139.75
Note 21: Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Obligations 74 16 4977
Advance from Customers 143.73 1,241.70
217.89 1,291.47
Note 22 ; Short Term Provisions
Provision for Leave Absences 2564 14 85
Provision for Giatuity (Refer Nole 34) 063 574
26.27 20.59
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

1O ((MumBAI )| =
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As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Note 23: Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products
Sales 15,335.94 15,779.93
Less: Discounts & Rebates 2,848.83 2,540.82
Total Sale of Products 12,487.11 13,239.11
Other Operating Revenues
Scrap Sales 36.39 41.39
36.39 41.39
Revenue from Operations 12,523.50 13,280.50
Note 23.1 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Company derives revenue from sale of products from following:
Particulars
1. Revenue from contract with Customers
Sale of products (Transferred at point in time)
Manufacturing
India 12,487.11 13,239.11
12,487.11 13,239.11
2. Other Operating Revenue
Scrap Sales 36.39 41.39
36.39 41.39
Total Revenue 12,523.50 13,280.50
Major Product Lines
Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants 12,487 11 13,239.11
12,487.11 13,239.11
Major Product Lines
Upon Delivery 12,487.11 13,239 11
12,487.11 13,239.11
Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer as per Ind AS 115:
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the contract price 15,335.94 15,779.93
Adjustments made to contract price on account of:
Discounts and Rebates (2,848.83) (2,540 82)
Other operating revenue 36.39 4139
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 12,523.50 13,280.50
23.2 Contract Balances
Contract Assets
Trade Receivables 2,223.19 2,226.70
Contract Liabilities
Advance from Customers 143 73 1,241.70
Note 24: Other Income
Other Non operating Income
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) P f{I-VA e - 1.32
“fnterest on Income Tax Refund VAP " 0.18 020
AR ! ‘l‘__;/f \\\‘/,\
(S 2 0.18 1.52




Note 25: Cost of Materials Consumed

NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Raw Material Consumed

Opening Stock
Add: Purchase
Less: Closing Stock

Packing Material Consumed

Note 26: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress

Opening Stock
Add: Purchase
Less: Sales

Less: Closing Stock

As at
31 March, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at
31 March, 2024

Opening Stock
Finished Goods
Work-in-progress

Less: Closing Stock

Finished Goods
Work-in-progress

-‘.j’
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591.82 63193
8,136 00 8,741.32
53561 591 82
8,192.21 8,781 43
17717 168.29
1,359.10 1,442.49
9.58 4993
127.81 177.17
1,398.88 1,383 68
9,591.09 10,165.11
713.41 692.53
5345 4596
766.86 738 49
123376 71341
27.77 5345
1,261.53 766.86
(494.67) (28.37)
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 27: Emplovee Benefits Expense

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expense

Gratuity Expenses

Leave Absences Expenses

Note 28: Finance Cost

Interest on Term Loan
Other Finance Cost

Note 29: Depreciation and Amortisation

As at
31 March, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at
31 March, 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on Right of Use Asset
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets

Note 30; Other Expenses

Freight and Forwarding Charges
Advertisement and Sales Promotion
Labour Charges

Rates and Taxes

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Royalty Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Note 30.1: Payments to Statutory Auditors'

Auditors remuneration excluding taxes (Included in Miscellaneous Expenses in

Note no 30)

As Auditor

Statutory Audit

Tax Audit

Limited Review
Reimbursements of Expenses

1,607.70 834.10
73.32 31.11
18.73 16.80
38.97 20.61
17.50 5.55

1,756.22 908.17

268.90 199.60
- 6.00
268.90 205.60
107.12 126.27
5.01 5.01
148.39 190.84
260.52 322.12
718.01 577.72
703.45 386.93
226.43 204.86
15.06 15.42
297.31 162.07
118.89 107.22
588.81 529.17
2,667.96 1,983.39
8.00 9.00
1.00 1.00
3.00 3.00
0.68 0.24
12.68 13.24
[RRVAZN
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 31: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Issue of Bank Guarantee

As at
31 Mavrch, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at
31 March, 2024

277.98 7.98
Disputed Claims 27.02
277.98 35.00
Note 32: Earnings Per Equity Share
Numerator:
Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (1,526.34) (274.00)
Denominator:
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares (In Lakhs) 200.00 200.00
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in Rs.) (7.63) 1.37)
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Migte 33 Related Party Diselggus

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its Financial S

{a) A persou or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the reporting entity;

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting eutity or of a parent of the reporting entity

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others)

(ii) One entity is an assaciate or joint venture of the oher entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entily and the olher entity is an associale of the third entity

(v) The enlity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entily related (o the reporting enlity If
the reporting entity s itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity

(vi) The entity is lled or jointly lled by a person identified in (a)
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management persounel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity

A related parly transaction is a fransfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price
is charged

Parties where control exist :

Ultimate Holding Company
- Kansai Paint Co Limited (Japan)
Holding Company

+ Kzl Nerulae Paunts Lititied

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

Kes Management Personnel

- Mr Prashant Pai, Non Executive Director

- Mr Jason Gonsalves, Non Executive Director

- Mr. Abhijit Natoo, Non Executive Director

- Mr Anil Phatangare Chief Operating Officer upto 259th February 2024

- Mr. Dileep Pandita Chield Executive Officer upto 15th June 2024

- Mr Debashish Vanikar Chield Executive Officer w e £, 16th June 2024

- Mr Prashant Murkar Chief Financial Officer upto 3 1st Oclober 2023

- Mr Pratik Sharma Chicf Financial Officer from 22nd April 2024 to 17th March 2025
- Ms, Rukmini Subramanian. Company Secretary

Disclosure of transactions with related parties
Amount in Lakhs

Sr.No.  |Transactions As at As nt
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
| Sale of finished goods
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limiled 58477 2.28326
2 Purchasc of Rnw materinls 8318 44 44
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited
3 Royalty Charges
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 11889 107 22
4q Advance received against sale ol goods
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 1,500 00
5 Reimbursement of Expenses
- Prashant Murkar - 0388
- Anil Phatangare . 1386
- Dileep Pandita 047 122
- Debashish Vanikar 293
- Pratik Sharma 206
6 Remuneration
Prashant Murkar (Remuneration is paid by Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited and the same - 749
is reimbursed by Company as Deputation Charges)
- Anil Phatangare 44 85
- Pratik Sharma 1731

Disclosure of Balances with related paities
Amount in Lakhs

Sr.No.  |Balances As at T As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
7 Payables
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 508 05 2175

|Advance Payables
| - Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited — 117 50 1214 44 |




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 33: Related Party Disclosures (Contd,)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Sales to related parties

Sales are made to related partics on the same terms as applicable 1o third parties in an arm’s length (ransaction and in the
ordinary course of business. The Company mutually negotiates and agrees sales price, discount and payment terms with the
related parties by benchmarking the same to transactions with non-related parties, who purchase goods and services of the
Company in similar quantities. Such sales generally include payment terms requiring related party to make payment within 30 to
60 days from the date of invoice.

Purchases of goods and related balances

- For Terms of Transaction

Purchases are made from related parties on the same terms as applicable to third parties in an arm’s length transaction and in the
ordinary course of business. The Company mutually negotiates and agrees purchase price and payment terms with the related
parties by benchmarking the same to sale transactions with non-related parties entered into by the counter-party and similar

purchase transactions entered into by the Company with the other non-related parties. Such purchases generally include payment
terms requiring the Company to make payment within 30 to 60 days from the date of invoice.

- For Terms of Balance
Trade payables outstanding balances are unsecured, interest free and require settlement in cash. No guarantee or other security has been given against

these payables. The amounts are payable within 30 to 60 days from the reporting date (31 March 2024: 30 to 60 days (rom the reporting dalc).

Royalty Payment to Holding Company

The Company makes royalty payment to the holding company for use of its brand @ 1% of turnover of Other than Private Labels Sale of the Company
for each financial year. The rate of royalty payment is determined using Transfer Pricing study conducted by tax professionals engaged by the Group
The royalty agreement requires the Company to make payment toward royalty expense for the year, within 30 - 60 days of raising the Invoice, Any
amount recoverable/ payable toward true-up adjustment of royalty is unsecured and interest free. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has
not recorded any impaimment on the amount due from the related parties (31 March 2024: Nil).

Settlement of liabilities on behalf of the Company by the related party (Reimbursement of Expenses)

Related parties make certain payment on behalf ot the Company. In such cases, reimbursement to the related party are due within period of 15 to 30
days. The amount payable ar¢ unsecured and interest free. During the year ended 31 March 2025, an amount of TNR 5,46 lakhs was paid by various
parties on behalf of the Company. (31 March 2024: INR 17.96 [akhs).

Remuneration to KMP of the Company

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the financial year related to KMP, The amounts do not include
expense, if any, recognised toward post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits of key managerial personnel.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Noje Wy Euyplover Depelitg
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Defined Contribution Plans:

Amount in Lakhs

Contribulion to defined contribution plan, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Company's
Counlribulion to Provident Fund in Employ ee Benefils Expenses for the period is as under:

Particulars

Emplover's contribution to Regional Provident Fund
¢ e

Asat
31 March, 2025

7332

As at

| 31 March, 2024

300

Defined Benelit Plans:
a. Gratuity

The follow ing tables sel oul the funded of the gratuity plans and the amount recognised in the Company Financial Stateient(s

as at 31st March, 2024 and 3 1st March, 2025

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning 5127 4724
Current service cos( 3564 1706
Interest Expense 333 355
Benefit payments from plan assels . -
Benefit Payments from Employer (1072) .
Remeasuremenis-Due to Financial Assumplions 2055 @1
Remeasurements-Due to Expereience Adjustments (14 29) (1247)
Remeasurements- acluarial geins/(losses) . .
L¥efined benelit alilyganion at year el 8578 5127

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss un

Particulars

Asat
31 March, 2024

Current Service Cosl

Net Interest Cost

Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss

Asat
31 March, 2025
3564
333
3897

17 06
355

2061

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Statement of Other Comprcehensive Income:

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2025

As at
31 March, 2024

Actuarial (gains) / losses on Defined Benefit Obligation 626 (16 58)
Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income 626 {16 58)
"The assumptions used to determine net periodic benelit cost are sct ont below:
Particulnrs . Asat

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Discounl Rate 696% 726%
Salary Escalation 10 00% 800%
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
(vears} 16 00 1100

Sendtivity Al

Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rale and Wilhdrawal Rate are significant actuarial assumplions The change
in the Present Value of Defined Bencfil Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Poinis from (he assumed

assumplion is given below:

der Employee Benefit Expenses:

Seenann AS Al As at

| 31 Mai'eh, 2025 31 Mureh, 2024

[Vimles Base Scesimio 7837 5127

“alin Escalation - Up by 1% 9024 5684

suluiy Escalation - Down by 1% 68.42 4645

Witlidrwal Rares - Up by 1% 7523 5070

Withidrawal Rates - Down by 1% 8196 5188

T hseouni Rates - Up by 1% 68 35 46 58

[hecoun| Raltes - Down by 1% 90 59 5680

N v Rates - Up by 10% 78 30 5126

Munilite Rates - Down by 10% 7844 SN

I"wppecied Rate of Return on Pl Ac et ORI 7260

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

Mortality Table As at As at
31.03-2025 31-03-2024
Attnined Age Wi Femnly Male Female

20 004y LU 009% 0),naog
25 (0% 009% 009% y
30 LR TR 01, 010%
35 0100 012" 0.12%
40 0 17%h (VN 017%
45 26t 0207 026%
50 UEE 044 0 44%
55 075 075 075%
60 - 12 |12 112%

C. Compensuted Ahsences
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 35: Segment Reporting

The Management Committee of the Company, approved by the Board of Directors performs the function of allotment of resources and
assessment of performance of the Company. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their meetings and level of finality of
their decisions, the Company has identified that Chief Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Management Committee

The financial informalion presented to the Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual
operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Management Cominittee monitors the business activity
as a single business segment viz. Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants, and the sales substantially being in the domestic market,
the financial statement are reflective of the information required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”,

During the year, there was no single customer with more than 10% of the Company's Revenue.
During the Previous year, Revenue from one customer amounted to INR 2,283.26 Lakhs, arising from sales of Adhesives, Conslruction
Chemicals and Sealants.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note Jo: Financinl Instruments: Categories of Financinl Instroment and Fair Valoe Hicrarchy

A. Categories of Financial Instrument

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value

hierarchy.
Amount in Lakhs

As at Fair Value Fair Value Amortised Cost
31 March, 2025 through Profit through Other

and Loss Comprehensive

Income

Financial Assets
Security deposit - 9.65
Trade Receivables - 2,223.19
Cash and Cash Equivalent 134.57
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 3.000 00
Short Term Borrowings 2
Trade Payables 4,017 35
Other Current Financial Liabilities 304 37
As at Fair Value Fair Value Amortised Cost
31 March, 2024 through Profit  through Other

and Loss Comprehensive

Income

Financial Assets
Security deposit 365
Trade Receivables 2,226 70
Cash and Cash Equivalent 43518
Financial Liabilities
l.ong Tenm Borrowings - 1,500 00
Short Term Borrowings - - 468.75
Trade Payables - - 2,642 77
Other Current Financial Liabilities 139.75

B. Fair Value Hierarchy

The management assessed the carrying value of financial assets and liabililies carried at ‘amortised cost” approximalte their fair value largely due

to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Fair value ineasurement using

As at Quoted prices in Significant Significant
31 March, 2025 active markets observable inputs  unobservable
inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets carried at amortised cost

Security deposit 965

Trade Receivables 2,223.19

Cash and Cash Equivalent 13457

Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Long Term Borrowings 3,000 00

Short Term Borrowings -

Trade Payables - - 4,017 35

Other Current Financial Liabilities 304 37

Fair value measurement using

As at Quoted prices in Significant Significant
31 March, 2024 active markets  observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposit 3.65
Trade Receivables 2,226 70
Cash and Cash Equivalent 43518
Liabilitics carried at amortised cost

- Long Term Borrowings 1,500 00

?RW*‘U«\\ 46875

% C & r\ - Sport Term Borrowings
/ ;“ \(I i Payables
f-ﬂl\\ Current Financial Liabilities

( \_\,_/ “‘\ ,,,\ 2,64277
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Nute 37; vinl Risk Monngement

The Company's principal tinancial liabilities compiise shott term loans and bortowings, tiade payables and other payables The main purpose ot these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s opelations and to provide guaraniees to suppoit its aperations. The Company’s principal financial assets
include loans to employees, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Company is exposed to market tisk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s financial 1isk activities are governed by appiopiiate policies and
procedures and financial risks are identified, measwred and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Company's
financial 1isk management policies are set as per the guidelines

i) Market Risk

Market risk is the 1isk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in maiket prices. Market piice
compiises thiee types of risks: interest 1ate tisk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market 1isk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. In respect of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company’s policy is to ensuie that its net exposwie is kept to an acceptable level

ii) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 1ates. The

Conipany’s exposure to the foreign currency risk arising mainly due to its operating activities and thus the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to tiade payables.

The Company has no exposure to foreign currency risk

iii) Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the 1isk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or' counteipaity to a financial instrument tails to meet its contiactual obhgations,

and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum
credit risk exposure

Trade Receivables

The Company’s exposure to ciedit 1isk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customes The Risk Management Committee has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes financial statements, credit agency information, industry information and in
some cases bauk references. Sales limits are established for each customer and reviewed constantly. Any sales exceeding those limits require appioval fiom
the management

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

Credit 1isks from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s Treasury Department in accordance with the Company’s
policy. Investments of surplus tunds are made only with approved counterpaitics and within credit limits assigned to cach counterparty. The limits are set to
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments

iv) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity tisk the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that aie settled by
delivering cash o1 another financial asset The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient Liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurting unacceptable losses or 1isking damage to the
Company's reputation. Further the company has obtained the financial Support letter from its holding company that it will be able to meet its liabilines

existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:
Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended 31 March, 2025 | Year Ended [On Demand Upto 3 months fo| 6 months 1 year to 5 years and [ Total
3 months | 6 months ta 1 year 3 years above
Borrowings 31/03/2025 - ' ' | 2,00000 | 1,00000 | 3,00000
| 31/03/2024 - 15625 15625 156 25 500 00 1,000 00 1.968 75
Trade Payables 31/03/2025 - 2,868 76 1,148.59 . - . 401735
31/032024 | - 264277 - - - - . 2,642 77
Other Financial Liabilities 31/03/2025 30437 - - - . 304 37
31/03/2024 139.75 - . - - - 139,75 |
Total | 31/03/2025 304.37 2,868.76 1,148.59 - 2,000.00 1,000.00 7,321.72
31/03/2024 |  139.75 2,799.02 156.25 156.25 500.00 [ 1,000.00 | 4,751.28 |

\
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 38: Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the period 2024-25, to the extent

the Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Act.

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2025

As at
31 March, 2024

a. The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supphier as at the end ol ench
accounting period;
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

- Interest due on above

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with thy
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period.

¢. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyoiid the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

il. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period

¢. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding periods, until such date when
Ilie interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deduclible

expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Amount in Lakhs
Note 39: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company
is equity based with financing through long term borrowings.

As at As at
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Long Term Borrowings including Current Maturities 3,000.00 1,968.75
Short Term Borrowings - 2
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 134.57 435.18
Net debt 2,865.43 1,533.57
Equity (604.12) 926.67
Total capital (604.12) 926.67
Capital and net debt 2,261.31 2,460.24
Gearing ratio 127% 62%

There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 40 - Ratio Analysis and its Elements

Particulars

Numerator

Denominator

31 March, 2025

31 March, 2024

% Variance

Reason for Variance

Current Ratio

Debt Equity

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

ROL

Inventory Turnover

Trade Receivables Turnover

Trade Payables Turnover

Net Capital Turnover

Net Profit ratio

Return on Capital Employed

Return on Investment

Current Assets

Total Debt

Eamings for debt
service = Net
profit after taxes +
Non-cash
operating expenses

Net profit after
taxes

Cost of goods sold

Net credit sales =
Gross credit sales -
sales return

Net credit
purchases = Gross
credit purchases -
purchase return
Net sales = Total
sales - sales return

Net profit

Eamings before
interest and taxes

Interest (Finance

Income)

nrrent Liabilities

Shareholders
Equity

Debt service =
Interest & Lease
Payments +
Principal
Repayinents

Average
Shareholders
equily

Average Inventory

Average Trade
Receivable

Average Trade
Payables

Working capital =
Current assets ~
Current liabilities

Net Sales

Capital Employed
= Tangible Net
Worth + Total
Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability

Investment

1.00

(4.97)

-946 42%

7,24743

-12.22%

-52.48%

NA

106

212

-26.02%

4.60

(6145)

-207%

-2.36%

NA

-6%

-334%

-3075 0%

3537%

-20.4%

12.5%

-20 7%

11895.0%

490 6%

2121.6%

NA

[nereise in payables as
impacted

Nel losses are increased

Loss in current year has
impacted

Net losses are increased

Shift to Make to stock and
low tumover

Enforcing credit policy has
given effect

Tight cash flow has resulted

in payment delays

Degrowth in the net sales

Net losses are increased

Net losses are increased
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note 41: Other Statutory Information
(i)The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami

property
(ii)The Company has balance with the below mentioned companies struck off ws 248 of Companies Act 2013

Namc of Struck off Company Nature of Balance Outstanding Relatiouship with the a
Transaction struck off company, it any,
with Struck | A5 a¢ March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 to be disclosed
off company

Loungely Fumniturc Pvt Ltd Trade Nil 097 NA
Receivables

(iii)The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(iv)The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v)The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(viYI'he Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultmate
Beneficiaries) or

(byprovide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii)The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii)The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books ol account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled at the databasc level
insofar as it relates to Focus accounting software. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of other software
Aditionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention

Note 42: Comparative Figures for Previous Period

Previous year figures are regrouped and recast wherever necessary to make them comparable with the ligures of )i current year
il
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